

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES  
AS PASSED BY THE  
Eighty-ninth and Ninetieth  
Legislatures

OF THE  
STATE OF MAINE

From April 21, 1939 to April 26, 1941  
AND MISCELLANEOUS STATE PAPERS

---

Published by the Revisor of Statutes in accordance  
with the Resolves of the Legislature approved June  
28, 1820, March 18, 1840, March 16, 1842, and Acts  
approved August 6, 1930 and April 2, 1931.

---

KENNEBEC JOURNAL  
AUGUSTA, MAINE  
1941

PROPERTY OF THE  
STATE OF MAINE  
NOT TO BE SOLD

---

---

Private and Special Laws

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

As Passed by the Ninetieth Legislature

(Effective July 26, 1941)

---

---

## Chapter 57

### AN ACT to Amend the Charter of the City of Gardiner.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

**Sec. 1. Biennial elections provided for.** Wherever in sections 5, 8, 9, 15, 19, 20, 21, 23, 24, 25, and 36 of chapter 244 of the private and special laws of 1913, as amended, the word "annual" appears, it shall be stricken out and 'biennial' substituted therefor, and wherever in said sections the word "an" appears before the word "annual" it shall be changed to 'a', and wherever the word "annually" appears in said sections it shall be changed to 'biennially'.

**Sec. 2. P. & S. L., 1913, c. 244, § 7, amended.** The paragraph numbered (1) of section 7 of chapter 244 of the private and special laws of 1913, as amended by section 2 of chapter 58 of the private and special laws of 1923, is hereby further amended to read as follows:

'(1) At the first city election held after the acceptance and under the provisions of this act and ~~annually~~ biennially thereafter at each and every ~~annual~~ biennial city election, there shall be elected the mayor for the term of the ~~one~~ 2 municipal ~~year~~ years next following his election, and 1 alderman from each and every one of the 6 wards of the city for the term of ~~the one~~ 2 municipal ~~year~~ years next following their election.'

**Sec. 3. P. & S. L., 1913, c. 244, § 13, amended.** Section 13 of chapter 244 of the private and special laws of 1913, as amended by section 4 of chapter 58 of the private and special laws of 1923, is hereby further amended to read as follows:

**'Sec. 13. Publication of nominations; ballots.** On the first day, not being Sunday or a legal holiday following the expiration of the time for filing the above described statements and petitions, the city clerk shall cause to be published in one daily newspaper published in the city, if there be any, otherwise in the nearest daily newspaper published in Kennebec county, the names and residences of the candidates for nomination who have duly filed the above mentioned statements and petitions, and the offices and terms for which they are candidates for nomination, as they are to appear on the official ballots to be used at the preliminary election for nominations. But where not more than 2 candidates for nomination for any office have duly filed the above mentioned statements and petitions, the city clerk in his published statement shall declare that whereas not more than 2 candidates for nomination have duly filed the statements and petitions as required by the city charter, no preliminary election shall be held, and the candidates whose names appear in this statement are thereby

declared to be nominated for the offices and terms for which they are candidates. If there are more than 2 candidates for nominations for any office, then the city clerk shall thereupon prepare the ballots to be used at such preliminary election for nominations and shall cause them to be printed, and the ballots so prepared shall be the official ballots and the only ballots used at such preliminary election for nominations. He shall prepare separate, distinctive ballots for each of the 6 wards of the city, which shall have the following heading on the face of the ballot:

“OFFICIAL NOMINATING BALLOT”

Ward (one, two, three, four, five or six—using the appropriate number.)

Candidates for nomination for (mayor and alderman) of the City of Gardiner at a preliminary election for nominations held on the ..... day of ..... in the year 19 , and on the back shall have the following heading:

CITY OF GARDINER  
OFFICIAL NOMINATING BALLOT  
PRELIMINARY ELECTION

(Month)	(day)	(year)
Attest:		City Clerk.’

Sec. 4. P. & S. L., 1913, c. 244, § 31, amended. The 6th paragraph of section 31 of chapter 244 of the private and special laws of 1913, as amended by section 10, of chapter 58 of the private and special laws of 1923, is hereby further amended to read as follows:

‘The mayor shall, at the first meeting and at every annual meeting thereafter, appoint, subject to approval by vote of a majority of all the aldermen the following officers: a city clerk, a treasurer who shall furnish such bond as shall be fixed by the city council and cannot hold the office of collector of taxes at the same time he is city treasurer, an auditor, a collector of taxes, a superintendent of streets and highways, a fire chief, a chief of police, a civil engineer, a city solicitor, a public health officer, an inspector of milk, ~~one member of the superintending school committee to serve for three years~~ one trustee of the Gardiner Water District to serve for 3 years, and one director of the public library to serve for 3 years. Such other officers and assistants as shall be provided for by ordinance, or may be necessary to the proper and efficient conduct of the affairs of the city, or are required by statute, shall be appointed by the heads of the several departments subject to approval by the city council.’

## CHAP. 57

Sec. 5. P. & S. L., 1913, c. 244, § 35, amended. Section 35 of chapter 244 of the private and special laws of 1913, as amended by section 14 of chapter 58 of the private and special laws of 1923, is hereby further amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 35. Annual report to be published in newspaper and in pamphlet form. The city council shall, on or before the fifteenth day of each month, publish in a newspaper published in the city, or if there be no such newspaper, then in the nearest daily newspaper printed in Kennebec county, a statement showing the amount of each appropriation with the total credits and charges thereto and the balance thereunder to the first of the current month; and also a summary of its proceedings during the preceding month. At the end of the municipal year ~~the~~ the city council shall cause a full and complete examination of all books and accounts of the city to be made by certified public accountants, and shall publish the result of such examinations in a newspaper published in the city, or if there be no such newspaper then in the nearest daily newspaper published in Kennebec county, and also with the annual city reports in pamphlet form.'

Sec. 6. P. & S. L., 1913, c. 244, § 39, amended. Section 39 of chapter 244 of the private and special laws of 1913, as amended by section 16 of chapter 58 of the private and special laws of 1923, is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 39. Amended to conform to R. S., c. 19; mayor to purchase all supplies and property except when amount is \$300 or more, then bids to be advertised. The duties of the superintending school committee, as prescribed by the laws of the state, except as herein otherwise provided, shall be performed by a school committee ~~of three members~~, which shall also and in like manner have charge of the high school. The school committee shall consist of 6 members, one from each ward, elected in the same manner as the members of the city council from the qualified voters of the city. They shall hold office for a term of 2 years and until their successors are duly elected and qualified. The mayor, shall be, ex officio, chairman of the school committee, but shall have no vote unless the members present and voting be equally divided.

The school committee shall meet for organization within 7 days from date of election. The members elected shall be sworn to the faithful discharge of their duties by a justice of the peace or by the city clerk, and a record made thereof. A majority of the whole number elected shall be a quorum. The committee shall fill all vacancies in their number for the remainder of the unexpired term. The purchase of any site for a school building, the purchase of any building for school purposes, the plans for

any alteration of any school building, the plans for any new school building, and the execution of any such plans for the alteration of old buildings or the building of new ones, subject to the provisions of chapter 46 19 of the revised statutes of 1930, and acts amendatory thereof, shall be determined, made, adopted and carried out by, and under the supervision of, the school committee acting jointly with the members of the city council.

The mayor shall purchase all books, stationery, school apparatus and schoolroom supplies required by the school committee or the superintendent of schools acting for them, but all ordinary repairs of school buildings and supplies or furniture for such buildings shall be made and purchased by the city council on recommendation by the school committee or the superintendent of schools acting for them. The mayor shall purchase all other property required by the city, save that when other property is required the value of which amounts to \$300 or more, the city council shall advertise for sealed bids therefor, reserving the right to accept or reject any or all bids or parts of bids. Such bids shall be addressed to said council and shall be accepted or rejected by said council, and upon the acceptance of any such bids or parts of bids, the mayor shall issue orders or execute contracts therefor. Should the city council fail to receive any such bids, said council may instruct the mayor to purchase such property in the open market.

~~The members of the superintending school committee whose terms of office have not expired when the first election by the city council is held under this act, shall serve out their unexpired terms as members of the school committee aforesaid.~~

The tenure of the present members of the school committee shall terminate January 1, 1943.'

**Sec. 7. Effective date.** Sections 3, 5 and 7 of this act shall take effect 90 days after the adjournment of the legislature. Sections 1, 2, 4 and 6 shall be effective only after the acceptance of the provisions thereof as hereinafter provided.

Sections 1 and 2 hereof shall be effective when approved by a majority of the qualified electors of the city voting at the next regular election to be called in said city. For the purposes of such election, the subject of sections 1 and 2 hereof shall be reduced to the following question: "Shall the act providing for biennial election of municipal officers be accepted?"

Sections 4 and 6 hereof shall be effective when approved by a majority of the qualified electors of the city voting at the next regular election to be called in said city. For the purposes of such election, the subject of sections 4 and 6 hereof shall be reduced to the following question: "Shall the act providing for election of a school committee by the voters be accepted?"

## CHAP. 58

Upon acceptance or rejection of the provisions of sections 1 and 2, or 4 and 6 hereof, the city clerk shall forthwith file with the secretary of state a certificate of the action of the city thereon.

Approved April 4, 1941

---

---

## Chapter 58

### AN ACT Creating the Waldoboro Water District.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

**Sec. 1. Territorial limits; corporate name; purposes.** Subject to the provisions of section 17 hereof, the inhabitants and territory of that part of the town of Waldoboro in the county of Lincoln, which is bounded and described as follows: Beginning at a point where the old U. S. highway No. 1 crosses Medomak river, thence northerly along said Medomak river to the bridge on the new U. S. highway No. 1A, thence along the said new U. S. highway No. 1A, easterly to the intersection of said highway No. 1A with the Washington road, thence southerly along said Washington road to Farrington corner at a point where the said old U. S. highway No. 1 intersects said Washington road, thence in a southwesterly direction to the present artesian wells, thence westerly to the Charles Lilly homestead, so-called, on Friendship street, thence in a northerly direction to a point on said Medomak river in back of the Paragon Button Company, so-called, thence along said Medomak river to the point of beginning; shall constitute a body politic and corporate under the name of Waldoboro Water District for the purpose of supplying said town of Waldoboro, and the inhabitants of said district, with pure water for domestic, sanitary, commercial and municipal purposes.

**Sec. 2. Source of supply.** The said water district, for the purposes of its incorporation, is hereby authorized to take, collect, store, hold, divert, use, flow, detain and distribute water from any lake, pond, stream or river and from any surface or underground brook, spring or vein of water in said town of Waldoboro, and from any other source from which the Waldoboro Water Company is now authorized to take water.

**Sec. 3. Right of eminent domain conferred.** The said district for the purposes of its incorporation is hereby authorized to take and hold as for public uses, by purchase or otherwise including right of eminent domain, any lands or interests therein, or water rights necessary for erecting and maintaining dams, for flowage, for power, for pumping its water supply through its mains, for reservoirs, for preserving the purity of the water